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The History

From humble beginnings in 1956 to the full-service, top-quality restaurant that it is today – only one thing matters to the management at Bern’s – THE CUSTOMER MUST COME BACK.

Bern’s Steak House’s founder Bern Laxer was born to a Romanian mother and Polish father on the Lower East Side of New York in 1923, and grew up in the Bronx.  After serving in World War II, he returned to New York where he pursued a degree in advertising from New York University.  He met his wife Gert in a copywriting class and they married in 1950.  To support them, Bern operated a one-man advertising agency in the city.

In 1951, Bern and Gert decided to move to California but Bern first wanted to visit his aunt in Florida, so they began their journey to California via Tampa.  Bern’s aunt operated a Chinese restaurant in Tampa for nearly 40 years and after watching her work, he vowed never to enter the restaurant business.  However, during their visit, Bern and Gert ran out of money so they called Tampa home and Bern began working for several companies in advertising, while freelancing a garden newsletter called Garden Notes in his spare time.

Initially, Bern and Gert tried to open a soft-serve ice cream parlor downtown, but could never get enough financing for the equipment, so it instead became a sandwich shop.  In June of 1953 they bought a small luncheonette called The Gator Juice Bar, which was 96 inches wide by 30 feet long and cost approximately $1400 down with a balance of $100 a month later.

At this time, Bern worked for a retail clothing company writing advertising copy, while also helping Gert at the luncheonette.  At first, the Laxers only served pre-squeezed, commercial orange juice, coffee and cold sandwiches.  They made, wrapped and pre-priced the sandwiches in the morning and then sold them at lunch.  In the beginning, their daily gross from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. was only $30 per day.  After several months, they added cold breakfast and opened earlier to accommodate more diners.

They worked at the luncheonette five days a week from 6 a.m. to 6 p.m.  On Saturdays while they were closed, they shopped for supplies in the morning and cleaned, scrubbed and repaired the rest of the day.  On Sunday’s Gert rested while Bern produced his four-page garden newsletter – doing the drawings, writing, typesetting and paste-ups from home.

Soon the small luncheonette was renamed and Bern and Gert’s Little Midway added a fryer, hot breakfasts and lunches, fresher eggs and homemade doughnuts. By the end of the second year, they were grossing $200 per day.

The Laxers always bought the freshest and best for their small restaurant.  Each morning they bought freshly ground hamburger – never using any that was leftover a second day.  A large burger with lettuce, tomato, mustard, pickle, mayonnaise and a slice of onion was $.30. Breakfast regulars each had their favorite jam, jelly or preserve with toast.  Bern and Gert kept records and stocked over 30 different jams.  Eggs were gathered nightly and delivered first thing in the morning and were always fried individually in pans with pure butter.  Breakfasts of one egg, toast, jam and choice of potatoes or grits with coffee were $.30.

Acknowledging their success, the Laxers moved their restaurant to 1208 South Howard Avenue purchasing the Beer Haven bar, located in the middle of a strip shopping center.  The purchase price was around $4,000 and after a “historical” meeting with 10-20 investors, Bern and Gert began their new endeavor in what is now the Bordeaux Room of Bern’s Steak House.

Because Bern and Gert were always equal partners, they had planned to share equal billing in the name of their new bar.  However, due to a shortage of money, they salvaged letters from the existing Beer Haven sign – only buying an extra “S” – and coming up with Bern’s – eventually adding “Steak House” because the phone company would not allow single first name listings.

Things began well, but soon the Laxers learned that the man they had bought the Beer Haven from had sold the bar without the landlord’s permission. Disapproving of alcohol sales, the landlord planned not to renew Bern and Gert’s lease once it expired – so instead of losing their lease, the Laxers agreed to go back to the food business – and became a restaurant again.  

They started again with $30 days and worked from 8 a.m. until 1:30 a.m., 7 days a week serving breakfast, lunch and dinner with beer and coffee in between.  Bern was the cook and dishwasher and Gert was waitress, hostess and number two dishwasher, while waitresses helped serve.

Over the years, Bern and Gert bought the adjoining shops and gradually grew Bern’s from one to eight dining rooms and from 40 to 350 seats.  The famous Harry Waugh Dessert Room was completed in 1985 with redwood wine casks creating 48 private rooms where guests enjoy nearly 50 desserts, cigars and wines, ports, sherries and Madeira’s.

Sadly, Bern passed away in 2002. Gert is retired and visits occasionally. Their son, David Laxer now runs the Steak House, Bern’s Fine Wines & Spirits and, our sister restaurant,  Haven (formerly SideBern’s). David is also a partner in the Epicurean Hotel, born out of a long term vision of his, which features our concepts Élevage, EDGE and Chocolate Pi.  In 2016, Bern’s Steak House won the James Beard award for outstanding wine service.
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